




















































































MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M., JANUARY 13, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC15-01 

1.  ROLL CALL:  
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos arrived at 7:02 pm 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Commissioner Harris moved to approve December 22, 2014, Planning Commission Minutes.  Commissioner 
Mirador seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  

 

None 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Conditional Use 

Permit No. 14/15-003 by Amending Conditional Use Permit No. 11/12-009 to Allow for Expanded 

Hours of Operation at 600 Marina Center for the Blue Devils Bingo Center, apn 0032-440-030.  

(Continued Public Hearing from December 22, 2014) 

 

John Kearns presented the staff report.  He briefly explained that a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a 

bingo center was originally approved on July 24, 2012 and on May 21, 2013 the City Council granted the 

Blue Devils a Bing License which was a condition of the CUP.  Mr. Kearns stated that the Blue Devils 

were requesting an amendment to the CUP to allow for expanded hours of operation. 

 

He further explained at the December 22, 2014, meeting, staff asked the Commission to continue the item 

to the January 13, 2015, meeting to allow for the Suisun City Police Department to investigate a complaint 

received by the City.  Mr. Kearns stated that a thorough investigation was conducted and that each of the 

allegations brought forward in the complaint were investigated by the Police department through site visits 

and interviews.  Further stating, that based on the information obtained and a review of State Laws 

governing the activities, the allegations brought forward are unfounded. 

 

 



Planning Commission Agenda 

January 13, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

Police Chief Tim Mattos stated the department did a thorough investigation regarding complaints received. 

He further stated that he spoke with Blue Devils operator Tom Hope and has received no other complaints 

from the community and have had no calls for service. 

 

Commissioner Adeva asked exactly what the complaints were.  Chief Mattos explained the complaints 

included children inside the bingo hall was related to the Subway which is open to the public, allegations of 

the size of prize monies when checked were within the laws and are not outside the boundaries due to the 

issuance of serialized card and one other complaint regarding the Subway and was completely unfounded.  

 

Chairperson Clemente closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Commissioner Adeva asked about Condition No 11 (iii) regarding excessive calls.  Chief Mattos explained 

that businesses are audited on a quarterly basis.  If there is an increase in calls for service, calls are logged 

based on the types of calls, the length of time on the call, how many officer hours it is taking.  He stated 

that looking back on the Bingo establishment there were two calls for things happening outside the 

establishment that Bingo was bringing to the attention of the Police.  He further stated that during Bingo 

operating hours the Police Department has noticed a decrease in loitering in the shopping center in general 

so Bingo has actually helped the center overall. 

 

Commissioner Adeva noted that Condition No. 17 needed to have the term “Community Development 

Director” corrected to be consistent with the rest of the Resolution. 

 

Commissioner Holzwarth moved to approve Resolution No. PC 15-01 with correction of Condition No. 

17.  Commissioner seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0.  

 
6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:   
 
None 
 
7.  COMMUNICATION: 
 
John Kearns stated there would be no meeting on January 27, 2015.  The February 10, 2015 meeting would 
be the Downtown Specific Plan and a possible Use Permit. 
 
Mr. Kearns stated that Wal-Mart was close to receiving their Temporary Certificate of Occupancy.  
There are a few staff items that need to be completed to accomplish that.    
 
Commissioner Holzwarth asked if there would be a tire service center.  Both Mr. Kearns and Mr. Garben 
indicated that they were not certain but would check the plans and send an email with the information. 
 
Commissioner Harris questioned the election of officers policy.  He stated that 3 of the existing 
Commissioners terms expire and new Commissioners could be appointed.  He stated that the Municipal 
Code only indicated how the Parks and Recreation Commission elected their officers and it states every 2 
years.  He was concerned that the Planning Commission did not have any reference in the Municipal Code. 



Planning Commission Agenda 

January 13, 2015 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Chairperson Clemente was also concerned with the fact that election of officers was not held until April, 
2014.  He also stated that he has not been able to locate any Bylaws for the Commission. 
 
Mr. Garben indicated that staff would do research on the matter and bring and Ordinance that would clearly 
define Bylaws and election of officers. 
 
Commissioner Harris also stated that the term of office expiration date was confusing as it gives a specific 
date of January 5 and in the next sentence states a Commissioner serves until a successor is appointed.  He 
felt that needed to be made clearer. 
 
Commissioner Adeva thanked staff and her fellow Commissioners for their understanding and support 
during absence for her recent health issues.  She stated that she was feeling great and had another procedure 
ahead of her and asked for their continued prayers. 
 

8.  ADJOURN. 

 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 pm. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 

a&m/150113.pca 


















	Agenda
	Item 4 - Bylaws
	Item 6 - Minutes
	Item 8 - Public Hearing - Downtown SPU Vision



